
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – October 11, 2021  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: October 11, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join the webinar.) 

Time: 5:00 p.m. 
            
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll Call 
 
 

Citizens wishing to address the Board during Public Comments, please use the “raise 
hand” feature on the webinar and you will be called on at the appropriate time. 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
You will be asked to identify yourself and state your address for the record. You will 
have three minutes to address the Board. Please submit any reports, statements, etc. 
for the public record to dporter@centralpiercefire.org by 4:00pm the day of the 
meeting.   
 

 

4. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:    
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of September 27, 2021 
C. Pg 6 /Approval of:  

 
Pg 19 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $3,397,458.53 

are included in Warrants noted above:  

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11699 to 11739 -$79,037.88 (Included in A/P Warrant 56573) 

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 11740 to 11745 -$860,593.98 (Included in A/P Warrant 56608) 

 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 55600 to 
52910 - $2,457,826.67 (Included in A/P Warrant 56610) 
 
 

5. 2021 Preliminary Budget 
A. Pg 42 /Section I: Revenue Highlights – FD Robacker 

 
 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56573 to 56606 totaling $ 171,753.33 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56607 to 56616 totaling $ 4,852,560.97 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107557 to 107563 totaling $ 45,342.65 

GRAND TOTAL $ 5,069,656.95 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:dporter@centralpiercefire.org


 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – October 11, 2021  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 

 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 59 /Fire Chief Selection – Chair Holm/HRD Washo 
 
 

B. Pg 60 /Cash and Travel Account Elimination – FD Robacker 
 
 

C. Pg 62 /IT Consortium Director Personal Services Contract – HRD Washo 
 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 68 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 
 

B. Pg 69 /Field Operations – AC Kent  
 
 

C. Pg 70 /EMS – AC Bouchard  
 

 

D. Pg 71 /DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 

 

E. Pg 72 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 

 

10. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg 74 /Washington Surveying and Rating Bureau Notification 
 
 

B. Pg 76 /Employee Recognition 
 
 

C. Pg 77 /Letter of Appreciation from Gig Harbor Fire & Medic One 
 
 

11. Commissioner Comments 
 
 

12. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                  September 27, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 27, 2021 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom webinar at 5:00 p.m. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Coleman, and Eckroth, Ex-Officio/Mayor Door, Chief 
Olson, Deputy Chiefs Karns and Stueve, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs 
Overby, McKenzie, Stueve and Nielson, and Executive Assistant Porter, recorder. 
Commissioner Willis’s absence was excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

VIZTOOL PRESENTATION – Grant Granger and Ryan Dickerson, of McKinstry, shared 
results of the Facility Condition Assessment report previously authorized by the Board. 
Copies of their presentation materials were included in the packet. This report will assist 
the District with planning for future facility needs.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences: Commissioner Willis 
B. Minutes: Special Board Meeting of September 8, 2021 

          Regular Board Meeting of September 13, 2021 
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
the Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $271,921.40. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  
 

A. Fire Chief Selection 
 

The process is in the background and suitability assessment phase.  

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56519 to 56519 totaling $ 6,349.20 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56520 to 56535 totaling $ 80,815.39 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 56536 to 56572 totaling $ 184,756.81 

GRAND TOTAL  271,921.40 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                  September 27, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

B. Retiree Medical Benefit Request  
 
L726 President James brought forward a request from FF Ed Hrivnak to address the 
Board. FF Hrivnak confirmed that he was not requesting an exemption. He asked the 
Board to consider making changes to the retiree medical benefit program. The current 
program does not take into consideration years of service for lateral hires and military 
veterans. He suggested the Board look at other fire department’s programs to see if 
they may fit with Central Pierce.  
  
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 

A. Finance – FD Robacker shared that there has been an unprecedented amount of 
overtime. An additional budget adjustment may be needed at year-end. The 2019 
state audit is complete.  

 

B. Information Technology - Interim AC Nielson reported on division projects. The 
team came together well to work through a recent situation with remote 
connections across the districts.  

 

C. Logistics – AC Stueve explained that the new apparatus has been returned to the 
dealer to resolve some issues. 

 

D. Prevention & Education – AC Overby reported that he and DC Karns are 
addressing information for the public records requests on the Cold Storage fire. 
He thanked HRD Washo and HRA Glass for their preparation of the Public 
Educator position.  

  

E. Health & Safety – AC McKenzie commented that the FIIRE program began today 
with their first consortium meeting. There were approximately 97 attendees 
representing multiple organizations.  

 

F. DC Administration – DC Karns reported that the Station 72 dirt issue is coming to 
a resolution. He and AC Stueve have identified a potential property for a new fire 
station on South Hill. An inquiry came through Councilmember Morell’s office 
concerning a recently surplused fire engine. The District has addressed our part 
and the surplus vendor has taken over responsibility to resolve the issue. 

 

G. Fire Chief – Chief Olson provided an update on employee exemptions status and 
possible new legislation that may affect our employees. He addressed the large 
amount of unscheduled leave. Staff will be looking at metrics to forecast future 
sick leave and FTEs in the 2022 budget. He is researching the South Sound 911 
funding that is currently being directed to Pierce County to understand how it 
correlates to the ILA. Finance Committee work is being done but, because of the 
Governor’s Proclamation and implementation, information won’t be available until 
October 18th. 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                  September 27, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 

CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Employee Recognition. Chair Holm appreciates those that take the time to 

recognize others. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio Door voiced great appreciation for all we do and referred to two recent 
incidents. She observed a fantastic job done by paramedics on a medical call. By 
receiving real-time updates on a fire in progress, she was able to calm an individual who 
wished to extend her heartfelt gratitude. Congratulations to DC Karns on getting to an 
end on the dirt issue.  
 
Commissioner Eckroth thanked DC Karns for getting to the bottom of the dirt issue.  
 
Commissioner Holm also thanked DC Karns. He is looking forward to hearing more 
about the property for a much needed station.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
At 6:07 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded 
to move into Executive Session for 20 minutes under RCW 42.30.140 – collective 
bargaining until 6:27 p.m. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
At 6:27 p.m., Chair Holm extended the meeting for two minutes. 
 
At 6:29 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded 
to return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. No action was taken during 
Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Eckroth seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 

      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



2022 PROPOSED BUDGET
SECTION 1: Revenue Highlights

Presented by Chief Daniel Olson October 11, 2021

42



AGENDA

2

 Review Tax Revenue

 GEMT Update

• Assessed Value

• Regular Levy

• EMS Levy

• Fire Benefit Charge

43



ASSESSED VALUE

10/11/2021 3

44



ASSESSED VALUATION – PROPERTY TAX

2021 Assessed Value (AV) Final $         29,838,098,935

2022 Preliminary AV 34,689,803,120

$ Increase 4,851,704,185

% Increase 16.3%

4
45



FORECAST ASSUMPTIONS –ASSESSED VALUE

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

AssessedValue % Increase Projected 16.3% 5.0% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

AV $ Projections in Billions $34.65 $36.39 $37.30 $38.23 $39.18

5
46



PROPERTY TAXES

10/11/2021 6

47



PROPERTY TAXES – REGULAR LEVY

7

Taxes in Millions of $’s 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Property Tax – Regular

(2026 Lift)
$28.83 $29.49 $30.20 $30.92 $39.18

Regular Levy Rate 0.83 0.81 0.81 0.81 1.00

• Levy Rate is Projected to be 83.1¢ per thousand in 2022, the 16.9¢ 

capacity left uncollected is $5.8M.

• The rate is projected to reach a low of 81¢ before the reset in 2026, 

but will drop much lower if AV continues to climb at double digits.

48



PROPERTY TAXES –EMS

8

Taxes in Millions of $’s 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Property Tax – EMS 

(2023 Lift)
$11.37 $18.19 $18.64 $19.09 $19.53

EMS Levy Rate .33 .50 .49 .49 .49

• Levy rate is projected to be 32.8¢ per thousand in 2022, the 17.2¢ 

capacity left uncollected is $5.97M.

• The rate is projected to reset with the LID lift in 203 – and reach a 

low of 49¢ in the following years, but will drop much lower than 49¢ if 

AV continues to climb at double digits.

49



PROPERTY TAXES –TOTAL REGULAR & EMS

9

Taxes in Millions of $’s 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

TOTAL TAX REG & EMS $38.9 $40.20 $47.69 $48.84 $50.01 $58.72

% Increase over Prior Yr 3.15% 18.61% 2.42% 2.39% 17.41%

• EMS LID lift in 2023

• Regular Levy LID lift in 2026

50



CPFR PROPERTY TAXES – GROSS*
ACTUAL & PROJECTED (REGULAR & EMS COMBINED)

29.4 
30.2 

31.2 

37.9 38.9 40.2 

47.7 
48.8 

50.0 

58.7 

$24.0

$28.0

$32.0

$36.0

$40.0

$44.0

$48.0

$52.0

$56.0

$60.0

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

Property Taxes (Regular & EMS)

M
ill

io
n
s

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022F 2023F 2024F 2025F 2026F

% AV Change 12.0% 12.4% 10.3% 9.7% 16.3% 5.0% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

*All property taxes shown gross prior to Levy write offs

10
51



FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE

10/11/2021 11

52



FORECAST ASSUMPTIONS – FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE (FBC)

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

FBC % Increase Projected 5.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

FBC $ Projections in Millions $25.90 $26.68 $27.48 $28.30 $29.15

12

 1% increase in FBC yields approximately $247k additional revenue, up to the max of 60% 

of operating budget

 60% max in 2021 is $39M, which means over $14M capacity is still available for FBC

53



GEMT

10/11/2021 13

54



GEMT UPDATE

 Fund balance is currently over $17M.

 Preparing for an audit

• Developing policies and procedures in writing.

• Reviewing and revising bases for allocations.

• May recommend higher GEMT reserve.

14
55



NEXT STEPS

10/11/2021 15

56



NEXT STEPS – 2022 BUDGET

 October 18th – Special Meeting - Prelim Budget I – Commissioners,  

Admin, Finance, HR, IT,  H&S

 October 25th –Prelim Budget II –All Logistics, CS, ERF, Facilities, 

Communications, Shop, and P&E Divisions

 November 8th –

• Prelim Budget III –All Operations, Training and EMS Divisions. 

• 1st Reading Final 2022 Budget, FBC Rate setting, Forecast Overview, Debt

 November 22nd – 2nd Reading Final 2022 Budget, Adoption and Levy Cert
16

57



QUESTIONS & DISCUSSION

1710/11/2021

58



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  October 11, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief Selection Process 

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chair Holm/HRD Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Chair Holm and/or HRD Washo will provide a verbal update on the process.   
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

59



            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: October 11, 2021  

Item Title: Cash and Travel Account Elimination 

Attachments:  

Submitted by: Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:     
Motion to approve dissolution of cash and advanced travel accounts in the amount of $11,300 and 
deposit into the main checking account. 

 
SUMMARY:     
Central Pierce has historically used multiple cash accounts for petty cash and change funds, and had 
several bank accounts.  Due to the use of credit cards and more frequent check runs, we have not used 
the District advanced travel account since 2017, or several of the cash funds in years. 

The cash funds we recommend closing have already been reconciled, with the cash being held in the fire 
file at Station 60, and are no longer in use. Policies will be updated to exclude usage of these accounts. 

  

60



            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

It is the recommendation of Finance that the accounts listed below be closed and/or dissolved with the 
Boards approval as follows: 

Account Amount Location: Action: Recommendation: 

Advanced Travel 
Account 

10,500 Umpqua Dissolve 
Deposit in Main Account, Last used 
2017 

Finance Petty Cash 200 60A - File Dissolve Deposit in Main Account 

P&E Change Fund 400 60A - File Dissolve Deposit in Main Account 

Shop Petty Cash 200 60A – File Dissolve 
Deposit in Main Account, Last used 
2019 

     

Imprest Account 7,500 Umpqua Keep 
Last used 2016, but keep for 
disasters/emergencies 

Finance Change Fund 100 60A – Rm  117 Keep Used regularly 

 

61



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    October 11, 2021 

Item Title:    Information Technology Consortium Director Personal Service Contract 

Attachments:    Information Technology Consortium Director Personal Service Contract 

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Motion to approve the Personal Service Contract for Information Technology Consortium 
Director.   
 
 
With the recent retirement of Jay Kay, we conducted a full recruitment for the next Information 
Technology Consortium Director that will lead the newly created consortium.   
 
The initial pool of applicants was vetted through a panel of IT Directors from three other fire 
districts, in addition to Deputy Chief Karns and myself.  The top three (3) candidates were then 
presented to the Fire Chiefs from all four (4) Districts in the consortium, who conducted 
interviews with each candidate.  The final decision was made by the Chiefs.  There was a strong 
pool of candidates, and we are pleased that we have recruited a current IT staff member to take 
on this role.   
 
Micah Scott-Ralston will be here to introduce himself to the Board of Commissioners.   
 
Micah has completed all of the recruitment requirements, and we have negotiated a contract 
with Mr. Scott-Ralston that represents what he will bring to this important position.  The length of 
the contract aligns with the other non-rep contracts (through 12.31.2023).   
 
We are asking the BOC to approve his contract, with an anticipated start date of October 18, 
2021. 
 
Chief Olson and I will be at the meeting to answer any questions you may have. 
 
Thank you.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None - Budgeted 

62



 

 

__________        ___________ 

Fire Chief          Employee 

Page 1 of 5 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Micah Scott-Ralston, Information Technology Consortium Director 
 

SECTION 1 – AGREEMENT 
 
1.1 THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered by and between Central Pierce  

Fire &  Rescue (Employer), and Micah Scott-Ralston (Employee).  Employer and 
Employee agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 2 - PURPOSE AND INTENT   
 
2.1 The Employer desires to retain the services of the Employee as Information 

Technology Consortium Director for Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, and to provide 
inducement for him to remain in such employment for a reasonable period; make 
possible full work productivity by assuring continuity of management and Employee's 
morale and peace of mind with respect to reasonable job security; encourage the full 
and effective performance of services on behalf of the Employer by the Employee. 

 
2.2 Employee desires to continue employment as Information Technology Consortium 

Director for the Employer. 
 

SECTION 3 – DUTIES   
 

 3.1 The Employer employs Employee as Information Technology Consortium Director for  
  Central Pierce Fire & Rescue.   Employee shall perform the functions and duties of said 

 position as set forth in this Agreement, the position’s Job Description; as specified by  
 the Employer’s Policies and Procedures; and as otherwise directed by the Consortium 

Board of Directors.  
 

SECTION 4 – TERM 
  
4.1 This agreement shall be in effect from October 18, 2021 to December 31, 2023, and 

shall remain in effect for that period until such time as the Agreement is amended 
and/or renewed by mutual agreement of the parties; the Agreement expires, 
Employee resigns, or Employee is terminated by the Employer.  This agreement also 
terminates upon Employee’s death. 

 
4.2 Nothing in this agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the  
 right of the Employer to terminate the Employee’s employment at any time or for any 

reason with or without prior notice, subject to provisions set out in Agreement, 

63



 

 

__________        ___________ 

Fire Chief          Employee 

Page 2 of 5 

Section 5.     
 
4.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the 
 right of the Employee to resign employment at any time, subject to the provisions set 

out in Agreement, Section 5. 
 

SECTION 5 – TERMINATION / RESIGNATION 
 
Termination 
 
5.1 In the event that the Employee is terminated by the Employer during the term  
 of this Agreement for any reason other than “just cause” when the Employee is willing 

to perform the duties of the Information Technology Consortium Director, Employer 
shall pay to the Employee: 

 
 5.1.1 The lesser of a lump sum cash payment of the Employee’s salary for the 

 remaining term of the Agreement plus accrued vacation and holiday 
 hours; or a lump sum cash payment equal to six (6) months aggregate salary  

  plus accrued vacation and holiday hours; and 
 

5.1.2 COBRA continuation coverage medical and health care benefits for six (6) 
months after termination, provided that Employee must make timely 
application and remain eligible for such COBRA coverage.   

 
Resignation 

 
5.2 Should the Employee voluntarily resign employment, then the Employee shall  

give the Employer advance written notice of not less than thirty (30) days.   
 
5.2.1 In the event of failure to comply with the notice provisions of this section, the 

resignation shall be deemed a voluntary quit, however, the Employee shall 
forfeit all severance, vacation and/or other accrued benefits. 

 
5.3 The employment of Employee may be terminated for just cause. For purposes of this 

Agreement, “just cause” means failure to perform duties and responsibilities of job 
assignment at a consistently satisfactory level; failure to follow the rules, regulations 
and policies of the Employer; conduct that constitutes a felony under federal or 
Washington law; conduct that constitutes a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, 
dishonesty, misrepresentation or public office misconduct; or Employee’s ineligibility 
for continued employment for failure to maintain license/certification requirements.   
Termination under this Agreement, Section 5.3 shall result in Employee forfeiture of all 
severance, vacation and/or other accrued benefits under this Agreement or Employer 
policies.   
 

64



 

 

__________        ___________ 

Fire Chief          Employee 

Page 3 of 5 

SECTION 6 – SALARY 
 

 6.1 Employer shall compensate Employee under this agreement in accordance with 
 established salary levels effective January 1, 2021.  See appendix “A”. 

 
 6.2 Employee shall be compensated at Step “A” of Appendix “A”.  
 
  6.2.1 Employee shall move to Step “B” on October 18, 2022.  
 
  6.2.2 Employee shall move and to Step “C” on October 18, 2023. 
 

6.4 Wages effective January 1, 2022 shall be increased by an amount equal to 100% of the 
CPI, Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue Index, Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, 
Semiannual 1st Half, 2020 to 2021, with a minimum of 1% and maximum of 4%. 
Appendix “A” shall be updated to reflect this increase.  

 
6.5  Wages effective January 1, 2023 shall be increased by an amount equal to 100% of the 

CPI, Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue Index, Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers, 
Semiannual 1st Half, 2021 to 2022, with a minimum of 1% and maximum of 4%. 
Appendix “A” shall be updated to reflect this increase.  

  

SECTION 7 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION   
 
7.1 Several different options for Deferred Compensation plans approved by the Employer 

are available to employees covered under this agreement, with the option to 
participate.  Employees shall be governed by the requirements of the plan and 
according to IRS guidelines.  

 
7.2 For non-uniformed employees covered under this agreement, CPFR contributes $250 

per month with no match required by the Employee.   
 

SECTION 8 – MISCELLANEOUS 
 
8.1 Any rights of a party that survives the termination of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable following Agreement termination.   
 
8.2 Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be sufficient, 

if in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Employee at him residence or to the Employer at its principal office. 
 

8.3 This agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto relating to 
the subject matter hereof and no modifications of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by both parties. 
 

65



 

 

__________        ___________ 

Fire Chief          Employee 

Page 4 of 5 

8.4 Any provisions hereof which are prohibited by law or are unenforceable shall be 
inoperative and all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall, nevertheless, 
continue in effect. 

 
8.5 In the event of the Employee's death, all wages and benefits due the Employee shall be 

handled in accordance with the probate laws of the State of Washington. 
 
8.6 This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Washington. 
 
8.7 The Employer’s Policy 340, FLSA Exempt, Non-Represented Non-Uniformed Employees 

Common Benefits Policy shall apply and provides for other benefits and other 
employment specifics that this position may receive.  

 
8.7.1 The Employee shall accrue vacation utilizing their original District hire date of 

February 27, 2020 for determining their vacation accrual. 
 

8.7.2 The Employee shall be eligible for longevity as outlined in Policy 340 utilizing 
their original District hire date of February 27, 2020. 
 

8.7.3 The Employee shall be allowed to use accrued vacation immediately, with no 
waiting period. 

 

SECTION 9 – EXECUTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 9.1 This agreement is effective the Agreement Term, upon approval by the Board  
  of the Employer, and execution by each of the parties below. 
 
 Executed this _____day of _______________________, 2021. 
 

EMPLOYER:       
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue   

 
 
By ____________________________     

Matthew Holm, Chair      
 
By ____________________________   

Rich Coleman, Commissioner 
 
By ____________________________   

Bill Eckroth, Commissioner 
 
By ____________________________   

66



 

 

__________        ___________ 

Fire Chief          Employee 

Page 5 of 5 

Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
By ____________________________   

Steven Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 

EMPLOYEE:        
 

Executed this _____day of ________________, 2021 
 
       Reviewed as to form: 
 
 
By ____________________________  __________  ___________ 

Micah Scott-Ralston    Fire Chief  HR Director 
  Information Technology Consortium Director 
 
        _________________ 
        Finance Director 
 

67



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    October 11, 2021 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

COVID 
 We are in the home stretch of the verification of vaccination or reviewing of exemption requests.  

As of the writing of this report, we still need to receive information from approximately 15 
employees. 

o Six (6) personnel have chosen to retire and will be retiring on October 18th.   
 

Recruitment 
 Fire Chief – At the direction of the Chair, the conditional offer letter was presented to Candidate 

Dustin Morrow on October 4th.  He is now completing the final steps of the hiring process. 

 IT Director – Before you tonight is the personal service contract for Micah Scott-Ralston.  

 Mechanic – The assessment center is being conducted on October 7th.    

 Lead Mechanic – the process is almost complete, and the eligibility list will be in front of you at 
your next meeting. 

 Payroll Analyst – Oral Board interviews were held on October 6th and 7th and Chief’s Interviews 
are scheduled for October 12th.   

 Three (3) Information Technology Positions – Applications were accepted through October 
10th, oral boards are scheduled for the week of October 18th  

o Network Administrator 
o Systems Administrator – Systems Applications 
o Systems Administrator – Systems Infrastructure  

 Public Educator – Applications are being accepted through October 17th, oral boards are 
scheduled for October 27th.   

 Entry Level Firefighter – With the number of personnel retiring in October, in addition to the 
number retiring in 2022, we have resumed the hiring process for entry level firefighters and are 
moving forward with candidates that passed the oral board interviews this past January.  We are 
hoping for an Academy of up to twenty (20) to begin on January 3rd.   

 
2022 Retirement Notification Window 

 We received notice of intent to retire in 2022 from twelve (12) uniformed employees 

68



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 10/11/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update – Field Operations 

Attachments:    

Submitted by: R. Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. 2021 Unscheduled Leave and Overtime Update  

 Sick Leave – Currently at $1.7M, $441,000 over 2020’s budget thru August 

 If Sick Leave usage stays at the current trend, a potential YTD increase of approx. 
$500,000 - $700,000 compared to 2020. 

 We are averaging 10.45 SL per shift 
2.  2021 Overtime  

 We are currently YTD at $5.07 Million spent on OT   

 If trend continues, we will be over $6.0M 
 

 3.  Continued work in supporting the Battalion Chiefs and Field Personnel   
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

69



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 10/11/2021 

Item Title:  Division Update - EMS 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by: J. Bouchard 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:   
 

1) Implemented new glucometers for entire District.   
A) Great collaboration & coordinated implementation process between Central 

Stores and EMS division.   
B) Early recognition of potential problem 

  
2) MCI 

A) Additional training throughout October 
B) Protocol changes through PCEMS 
C) CPFR will lead the rewrite/rebuild of MCI Operational Plan for Pierce County 

 
3) Ongoing meetings with Off Campus Emergency Rooms 

A) 37,178 patients evaluated 
B) 1,919 patients transported 
C) 31 transports by CPFR  

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 

70



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 10/11/2021 

Item Title:  Section Update – Operations 

Attachments:  N/A 

Submitted by  E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. All participating agencies have signed the Data Collection and Analytic Display Software ILA 

(Intterra Contract) and implementation continues. 
2. The Strategic Assessment of Pierce County Technical Rescue & Hazardous Materials 

response has proved difficult to launch.  The District still intends to begin the work in 2021, 
but completion is unlikely. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

71



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  October 11, 2021 

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report 

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 

 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 
1. Benefit Charge/EMS Levy:  

a. Director Robacker will be providing the rate and revenue projected by passing the 
EMS renewal at the BOC meeting. We are meeting with the consultant for next steps 
in mid-October. Once the Budget is passed in November, we will be recommending 
the type of levy and the rate for the BOC to consider and direct. 

 
2. IT Consortium: We are now working toward transitioning to the consortium model as 

outlined in the ILA. We will be selecting a Chair, implementing a standard agenda and 
the process to create the Board of Directors packets in order to have an orderly and 
effective meeting. This will be instituted the third week of October. In the meantime, we 
are developing an on boarding plan for the new IT director and recruiting to fill positions.  
a. I want to express my great appreciation for the work of Temporary AC Nielson. I 

could not be more pleased with her steadiness, prioritization, observations and 
constructive effort to prepare IT for the consortium. AC Neilson has exceeded all of 
my expectations. We are so fortunate to have quality leaders like her in our 
organization that are willing and able to make a difference for our mission- Thank 
you, Jennett. 
 

3. Governors Proclamation: We have sent out 7 letters to individuals who have not 
communicated their vaccination status to the District. This is a huge reduction from the 
41 communicated at the last BOC meeting. We need to know the status of all 
employees within the scope of the mandate to assure compliance by the 18th. We think 
we will have 6 who will retire, 62 with exemptions, and the rest fully vaccinated. This is  

72



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

great news as we will see an OT increase but maintain service levels. We will also 
receive 14 new recruits because of the current recruit school available in mid-November. 

 
4. Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) for 2022: We have received 12 requests for PRM in 

2022. One does not meet the criteria within Resolution 13-01. As a result, we will be 
down 18 employees in 2022 (these 12 plus the 6 proclamation retirements). Because of 
this, I have directed the onboarding of replacements to begin immediately with a start 
date of the first working day in January so we do not run down on the FTE count with 
retirements. 
 

5. OT and Unscheduled Leave Usage: We are seeing a continued increase in both of 
these items. We are taking a deep dive into the facts. We have been seeing an 
incremental increase that is accumulative as sick leave use has increased because of 
COVID and laws enacted to protected the use from management oversight. Based on 
our current understanding we will need to budget for 11 to 12 unscheduled leaves per 
day based upon current usage. We are going to look at where our business interest 
lands. In other words, how many people should we hire to reduce the cost of OT.  
 

6. Fire Chief Selection and On-Boarding: We have made the conditional offer to Dustin 
Morrow. He is currently completing the psychological and physical exam. We will also 
begin negotiating with him regarding an employment contract. This will probably result in 
a decision for the BOC at the first BOC meeting in November. Both of the Chairs and 
Chiefs from CPFR and PCFD 16 are meeting to discuss transition and time items in mid-
October. 
 

7. Payroll Analyst: I will be conducting and selecting a person to replace Mindy as our 
payroll analyst. We have two outside candidates and one internal candidate who is 
currently filling the role, Jessica Resop. 
 

8. EMS Study: We are scheduled to meet with Fitch mid-month to review the draft 
recommendations.  
 

9. 2022 Budget: The process is moving forward. We are finalizing the priorities. We will 
follow a similar process as last year with each Division presenting their staff approved 
requests for the BOC to consider. 
 

10. Local 726 Contract Negotiations: We are deep into this effort at this point with 
significant staff involvement and work. We have the final date for open proposals this 
Monday which will allow both parties to know the landscape. 
 

11. COVID-19: 

a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The authority has not 
been exercised during the previous two-week period. I will continue to report any 
uses of the declarations authority. 

b. The infection rate is steadily reducing in Pierce County from the insurance of the 
Delta Variant. There is considerable apprehension for a winter surge. We will stand 

ready and adapt.   

73



September 15, 2021 

Fire Chief Daniel Olson 
Pierce County Fire District 6 
PO Box 940 
Spanaway, Washington 98387 

Chief Olson: 

' WSRB 

Washington Surveying and Rating Bureau (WSRB), a not-for-profit, public service 
organization, evaluates the fire defenses of every community in Washington state on a 
regular basis as part of our Protection Class (PC) rating service. Insurance companies use 
PC ratings to help determine fire insurance premiums for individual properties. 

It is time for us to update your community's PC rating. I am sending you this letter to begin 
the process and to allow you time to prepare for a WSRB on-site visit. 

Scheduling our visit: Is there a specific date between January 2022 and October 2022 that 
would be best for you and your department? Please email publicprotection@wsrb.com your 
top two preferred dates by October 15,2021, and I will do my best to schedule the visit for 
one of those dates. I will be conducting numerous evaluations in the coming year, so I ask 
for your cooperation and flexibility in scheduling. Otherwise, I will contact you in the 
coming months to set up a date, answer questions and help you and your staff prepare. 

Educational Webinar: The Washington Fire Chiefs (WFC) will be hosting a WSRB webinar 
on how to prepare for a WSRB rating on November 3, 2021 at 10am. Thiswebinarwill cover 
all facets of a PC rating and how a community can prepare for a rating. Webinar registration 
is available at the WFC website and we encourage you and your team to attend this free 
webinar. The webinar will also be recorded and available for viewing on the WFC website. 

Tender Credit: If your department has WSRB Tender Credit, I will review this credit as part 
of the evaluation process. If your department currently does not have this credit, and is 
interested in applying, please let me know. 

Record review and COVID-19: Evaluations involve the review of department records from 
previous years. WSRB understands that COVID-19 may have curtailed some department 
activities, and I will work with you to understand how activities have deviated from normal. 

Notification of results: After we complete the evaluation, we will email a letter and report 
detailing the results to the fire chief; we no longer mail paper copies. Fire department or 
city officials can request a copy of a PC evaluation letter and report at any time by emailing 
publicprotection@wsrb.com. 

<v PO Box 1188 ~ T: 206-217-9772 @) www.wsrb.com 
Renton, WA 98057-1188 

74



Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Cunningham 
Fire Protection Analyst 
206-273-7183 
eric.cunningham@wsrb.com 

cc: Mayor of Puyallup 
Board of Commissioners 

~ PO Box 1188 
Renton , WA 98057-1188 

~ T: 206-217-9772 

WSRB 

~ www.wsrb.com 

75

port08190
Highlight



 

“Effectively Respond, Cont inuously Improve, Compassionately Serve ”  
 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Pierce County Fire District No. 6 

  PO Box 940 Spanaway WA 98387 

17520 22nd Avenue East, Tacoma WA 98445 

Phone - (253) 538-6400 ~ Fax - (253) 537-7294 

 

 
 

 

 

September 23, 2021 

 

 

Dear Ryan, 

 

The purpose of this letter is to formally commend you for your professional and compassionate 

actions on September 20, 2021. While working at the Washington State Fair, you and your crew 

were presented with a simple request for assistance that quickly escalated to a messy situation.  

You and your crew quickly and appropriately worked together to remedy the patron's problem.  

All reports from the incident indicate that each of your actions was positive and impactful. 

 

In speaking with each of you individually, it became apparent that you were all on the same page 

going above and beyond the call of duty.  Each crew member commented on the positive attitude 

of each of the other members of the team.  These actions exemplified the department's mission 

statement by compassionately serving our public. 

 

As you know, we have a large group of eager new firefighters that are in desperate need of this 

level of professionalism, enthusiasm, and compassion.  I encourage you to continue to focus your 

energies on developing these motivated firefighters. 

   

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Adam Rosenlund 

Battalion Chief 

 

 

Cc: Personnel File 

 Commissioner Packet 

 

Sent to: 

FF Ryan Orseth  FF Wyatt Helley 

FF/PM Luke Courtney FF/PM Scott Berdan 

FF Stephen Hoge  FF/PM Steven Hammond 

 

76



77


	1 - 2021-07-12 Board Agenda DRAFT
	4B -2021-09-27 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	4C - 2021_10_11 Warrant Approval
	5-00_2021-10-11_2022 Budget_Revenue Highlights [Read-Only]
	7A - Fire Chief Selection Process
	7B - 2021-10-11_AIS_Finance Cash Clean Up
	7C1 - 10.11.2021 IT Consortium Director Personal Service Contract
	7C2 - Employment Agreement draft M Scott-Ralston  10042021
	8A - 10.11.2021  HR Report
	8C - Operations AIS 10-11-2021.1
	8D - EMS AIS OCT 2021
	8E - OPSEC AIS 10.11.21
	8F - AIS - Fire Chief
	9A - WSRB Notification
	9B - Ryan Orseth commendation 9- 23- 21
	9C - GHFMO



